RFP 16-27 
TECHNICAL PROPOSAL
ATTACHMENT F

	INSTRUCTIONS

	· [bookmark: _GoBack]Please supply requested information in the blue-shaded areas and indicate any attachments that have been included. 
· Document all attachments with which section and question they pertain to.



Mandatory Requirements
Confirm that your understanding and ability complete the specifications, outlined in Sections 1.4.3.2, 1.4.3.5 and 1.4.6.1 of Attachment H.
	



The Respondent shall guarantee that imagery or files which are not to specification, shall be fixed or replaced at no charge to IOT for at least three years after the date of delivery to IOT.  Confirm your understanding and acknowledgement of this requirement.
	



Technical Proposal Questions
2.4.1. Involvement in the Indiana GIS Community
2.4.1.1. Provide information that depicts how your company has been involved with and supported the Indiana GIS community in the past five years.
	



2.4.2. Project Extents and Imagery Resolutions
2.4.2.1. Describe your previous experience with statewide ortho projects. 
	



2.4.2.2. How many aircraft do you feel is adequate to make available for this project (approximately 1/3 of Indiana each year for three years) 
	



2.4.3. Project Deliverables
2.4.3.1. Coordinate Systems and Units (All Products)
2.4.3.1.1. What complications, if any, do you anticipate given that this project, while being a seamless statewide project, will be managed as 3 (three) 1-year projects and delivered county-by-county?
	



2.4.3.1.2. How do you propose to manage the delivery of the “collar” area between counties of different resolutions (one county is acquired as 30 cm and is adjacent to a 15 cm county)? 
	



2.4.3.2. Mandatory Product & Service Set Deliverables - Color Orthoimagery and Ancillary Products
2.4.3.2.1. Will you be using the same sensor in each aircraft? It not, please elaborate.
	



2.4.3.2.2. What issues do you anticipate with color balancing a project that spans multiple years, and what process do you use to mitigate any issues? 
	



2.4.3.2.3. Describe your experience and solution to provide Open Geospatial Consortium (OGC) Web Map Service (WMS) to allow Internet viewing of the orthoimagery in production. 
	



2.4.3.2.4. Describe your experience and solution providing a Web-based Quality Control (QC) Viewer to the State for visual quality control review and making call-outs on the imagery for correction before the delivery of the files on disk drives. 
	



2.4.3.3. Media and File Format Requirements
2.4.3.3.1. How will you ensure that file naming, file format, file header information are consistent throughout the project? 
	



2.4.3.3.2. What media and process do you propose using for final deliveries? 
	



2.4.3.4. Incremental Deliveries and Sign-Off
2.4.3.4.1. We anticipate that the photogrammetry staff from the Indiana Department of Transportation will be performing a quality review.  How will you use their capability to ensure a superior product for Indiana? 
	



2.4.3.5. Metadata
2.4.3.5.1. Based on your experience with statewide, multi-year projects, what advice can you offer about the creation and delivery of metadata for each of the deliverable products? 
	



2.4.3.6. Permanent Storage
2.4.3.6.1. How will you ensure the storage of final deliverables through the guarantee period? 
	



2.4.3.7. Rejection of Product / Re-flights
2.4.3.7.1. What percentage of your final deliverables for previous statewide ortho projects have been rejected by the client, and how did you resolve these issues. 
	



2.4.3.8. Optional Product Set and Service Deliverables
2.4.3.8.1. OPTIONAL PRODUCT SET 4 – Describe your process to produce and quality check each Orthoimagery tile in Enhanced Compression Wavelet (ECW) format. 
	



2.4.3.8.2. OPTIONAL PRODUCT SET 5 – Describe the process and tools used to revise or create the DEM bare-earth digital elevation model (DEM) suitable for holding the new orthoimagery, and indicate the vertical accuracy. 
	



2.4.3.8.3. OPTIONAL PRODUCT SET 6 - Describe the LiDAR mission, including any specific experience you have producing USGS 3DEP QL2 data.  Include descriptions of the airplane, sensor, pulse rate and processing equipment.  Include horizontal accuracy, vertical accuracy, point density, point footprint size, flight height, scan angle, swath width, and swath overlap.  Indicate the contour interval that the vertical accuracy can support (with additional processing outside of this scope). 
	



2.4.3.8.4. OPTIONAL PRODUCT SET 7 - Describe the LiDAR mission, including any specific experience you have producing USGS 3DEP QL1 data.  Include descriptions of the airplane, sensor, pulse rate and processing equipment.  Include horizontal accuracy, vertical accuracy, point density, point footprint size, flight height, scan angle, swath width, and swath overlap.  Indicate the contour interval that the vertical accuracy can support (with additional processing outside of this scope). 
	



2.4.4. Performance Criteria / Project Specifications
2.4.4.1. Project Prioritization
2.4.4.1.1. Respondents shall propose the resources and approach to prioritize the acquisition of Indiana imagery within the limited number of days acceptable to capture imagery available during clear weather conditions and for what duration aircraft will remain on-site. 
	



2.4.4.2. Image and LiDAR Collection Requirements
2.4.4.2.1. Horizontal Accuracy Requirements (Orthoimagery Products)
2.4.4.2.1.1. Respondents shall propose their approach and method to perform independent accuracy testing of the orthoimagery products as outlined in this section.
	



2.4.4.2.2. Positional Accuracy Requirements (LiDAR Products)
2.4.4.2.2.1. Respondents shall propose their approach and method to perform independent accuracy testing of the elevation products as outlined in this section. 
	



2.4.4.2.3. The Sections on Pixel Clarity thru Flight Line Plan
2.4.4.2.3.1. Respondents shall describe their process for these sections. 
	



2.4.5. Project Component Requirements
2.4.5.1. Ground Control
2.4.5.1.1. Respondents shall propose their approach for establishing ground control of sufficient density and accuracy to meet the accuracy requirements of the deliverable orthoimagery and elevation data at the resolutions indicated, as well as ground control of sufficient density and accuracy to perform independent accuracy testing required in the previous section. 
	



2.4.5.1.2. Include a discussion of how existing control from the 2011-2013 Ortho-LiDAR project, as provided by the State, will be incorporated, as well as any plans for determining the availability and/or quality of any other existing ground control. 
	



2.4.5.1.3. The Respondent shall describe the method for ground control points collected to be documented and marked such that they can be easily relocated by other surveyors and survive throughout the timeframe of the project. 
	



2.4.5.2. Mosaicking and Radiometry
2.4.5.2.1. Respondent shall describe the process to be used to constrain building lean within the orthoimagery and to account for excessive building lean, particularly in areas with concentrations of structures over 5 stories in Fort Wayne and Indianapolis. 
	



2.4.5.2.2. Respondent shall describe the process for types of radiometric adjustment incorporated into their production processing and quality control workflow. 
	



2.4.5.3. Digital Elevation Model Specifications
2.4.5.3.1. Respondent shall describe the process to produce a suitable digital elevation model that will meet the orthoimagery accuracy and quality standards as defined in this RFP. 
	



2.4.5.4. Alternate Sensor Capabilities
2.4.5.4.1. Describe any proposed alternative technologies (e.g. Geiger Mode LiDAR, Single Photon LiDAR, Satellite digital imagery, Unmanned Aerial System, etc…) and the anticipated risks and benefits to the project.  Sensor accuracy, calibration and QA/QC metrics shall be submitted for any proposed non-traditional imaging or elevation sensors. 
	



2.4.5.4.2. The Respondent should discuss any associated differences in methods and costs using proposed alternative technologies in the proposal. 
	



2.4.6. Project Management and Project Descriptions
2.4.6.1. Project Plan - Respondent shall describe the project planning, flight mission and image processing, including the following:
2.4.6.1.1. A project management plan, including demonstration of the allocation of sufficient resources to complete to complete all aspects of the work on time and within budget. 
	



2.4.6.1.2. Ground control: include how horizontal and vertical control will be established, and how the imagery will be referenced to the control.  Describe any use of existing control (if not applicable, please state so with rationale); sensors, accuracy, collection techniques and processing. 
	



2.4.6.1.3. Flight mission: include a description of flight planning, aircraft, IMU, motion compensation, camera details and data storage.  Address endlap, sidelap, tip, tilt, crab, and flying height. 
	



2.4.6.1.4. Photogrammetric processing: include a description of processes, technology and software used for image processing, Analytical Aerial Triangulation, block and bundle adjustment, and residuals. 
	



2.4.6.1.5. DEM creation: include a description of the processes and software used for DEM creation or editing. 
	



2.4.6.1.6. Ortho rectification, mosaicking and tiling: include a description of processes and software.  Address how the processes will eliminate or minimize radial displacement, building lean, smears, artifacts, blemishes, scratches, dust, and spectral reflectance from water surfaces. 
	



2.4.6.1.7. Quality Assurance and Quality Control (QA/QC) strategy: describe how the processes are designed to eliminate of errors.  Detail the steps taken for review of products.  Describe how rejected products will be handled, including reflights, tile errors, mosaic and radiometry errors. 
	



2.4.6.1.8. Delivery schedule: provide a proposed schedule for planning, flight missions, processing, and delivery. 
	



2.4.6.2. Point of Contact
2.4.6.2.1. Please confirm that the respondent shall provide contact information for an individual or team of individuals that will allow IOT to contact the Respondent’s “Point of Contact” anytime during regular business hours. 
	



2.4.6.3. Meetings and Reporting Requirements
2.4.6.3.1. The Respondent shall propose their meeting plan and reporting tools to meet the requirements outlined in this section. 
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